

NOTICE OF MEETING

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, CULTURE & LEISURE SCRUTINY PANEL WEDNESDAY, 22 OCTOBER 2014 AT 6.00 PM

CONFERENCE ROOM A - CIVIC OFFICES, FLOOR 2

Telephone enquiries to Joanne Wildsmith CCDS Tel: 9283 4057 Email: joanne.wildsmith@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

Membership:

Councillor Julie Swan (Chair)
Councillor Simon Bosher
Councillor Ben Dowling
Councillor Hannah Hockaday
Councillor Lee Hunt
Councillor Matthew Winnington (Vice-Chair)

Standing Deputies

Councillor Alicia Denny Councillor David Fuller Councillor Phil Smith Councillor Lynne Stagg Councillor Alistair Thompson

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

AGENDA

- 1 Apologies for absence
- 2 Declarations of Members' Interests
- **3 Minutes of Previous Meeting 11 September 2014** (Pages 1 6)

4 Review - Revitalising local high streets and secondary shopping centre areas in the city (Pages 7 - 10)

- a) Traders Associations Tony Broome from Cosham Traders' Association has been invited to attend
 (Jenni Catlow from Albert Road is unable to attend this meeting but will pass her comments to the panel via Barry Walker)
- b) PCC Transport officers the following officers have been invited to attend to address transport issues:
 - Marc Griffin, Assistant Head of Service, Environment & Transport
 - Nicola Waight, Environmental Change & Sports Development Team Manager
 - Danny Johnson, Passenger Transport Officer
 - Michael Robinson, Parking Operations Manager (has to leave by 7.10 to attend another meeting)
 - Jo Cole, Carbon Reduction Co-ordinator
- c) Report back from High Streets Conference report attached by Cllr Julie Swan who attended the DCLG conference on 18 September "The Future of UK High Streets: Driving Local Growth and Regeneration" on behalf of the panel, which was also attended by Claire Upton-Brown, City Development Manager

5 Date of next meeting

To set the date of the next EDCL panel meeting and which witnesses to invite.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue.

Agenda Item 3

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, CULTURE & LEISURE SCRUTINY PANEL

RECORD OF DECISIONS of the meeting of the Economic Development, Culture & Leisure Scrutiny Panel held on Thursday, 11 September 2014 at 6.00 pm at the Guildhall, Portsmouth

Present

Councillor Julie Swan (in the Chair)

Councillors Simon Bosher

Ben Dowling Hannah Hockaday Matthew Winnington

22. Apologies for absence (Al 1)

No apologies for absence had been received for this meeting.

23. Declarations of Members' Interests (Al 2)

There were no declarations of members' interests.

24. Minutes of Previous Meeting - 26 June 2014 (Al 3)

The minutes of the EDCL Panel meeting of 26 June were agreed as a correct record.

As a matter arising it was reported that following discussion at the Scrutiny Management Panel on 4 July the EDCL Panel's previous report 'Pathways into work for young people' had been taken to a special meeting of the Cabinet on 14 August where it had been accepted, unamended, for implementation.

25. Community Ownership Unit Portsmouth (COUP) Update (Al 4)

James Sandy presented his report which set out a co-ordination of responses and the projects that were being explored by the "virtual team" who were working to gauge interest in community ownership ideas through networking events. These had included talks in February and March by the Lord Speaker, Baroness D'Souza who had a background in the voluntary sector and by Giles Piercy who had run a large-scale social enterprise in London. The intention was now to move to a networking event once a quarter, whilst maintaining on-going interest through the online blog. The report also set out the involvement of officers in other related projects such as Fratton Big Local and We Big Local in Wecock Farm. A community benefit review had been requested by the previous Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure & Sport (CLS) regarding Hilsea Lido which would be reported back to the new Cabinet Member for CLS in the autumn.

Discussion took place regarding the **Love Your Street** (Cities of Service/ Portsmouth Together) initiative for which funding had been allocated to look at the impact of volunteering locally, for which Portsmouth City Council would concentrate on environmental and small-scale physical projects eg herb garden projects which would encourage to build links within communities.

The **Cities of Service** service plan (for which the contact officer is Brian Bracher) was due to be launched the following week. Members of the panel were interested in how this initiative would be promoted. It was felt it should not just be through the website as not everyone had access to this and it was reported that they would be targeting the streets through door knocking and leaflets and the involvement of councillors was discussed.

For Love Your Street there was an aim to get a mix of residential areas and the project should be useful in helping to reinvigorate the neighbourhood forums through existing ones and hopefully to encourage new ones in other areas. Panel members felt that the councillors would know people in their areas who would be keen to get involved in such community projects and should put forward names for James to make contact with. Other suggestions were that Neighbourhood Watch co-ordinators and the community wardens would know of those active in the communities, be keen to volunteer and be involved; other areas to be targeted could be through libraries, community centres and primary schools where people are already undertaking voluntary roles It was hoped that therefore new people would come forward.

James reported that the roll-out would start in October with two or three wards initially and the ward councillors there would be consulted beforehand.

The COUP team were also looking at interest related to potential support for community ownership of asset projects by community groups at the Brewery House, Hambrook Street and South Parade Pier on the seafront. James Sandy would be reporting back periodically to the EDCL Panel regarding the COUP work and was thanked for attending to give this update.

26. New Review Topic - Revitalising local high streets and secondary shopping areas in the city (AI 5)

The panel had received the draft scoping document and recent press articles on the subject of revitalising High Streets. The chair would be attending the DCLG conference in London on 18 September "The Future of UK High Streets: Driving Local Growth and Regeneration" and would report back to the panel.

Claire Upton-Brown, the City Development Manager attended to speak mainly regarding the planning context of this review topic, and how PCC tried to protect retail. Within the Portsmouth Plan there were identified shopping centres in a hierarchy which was the following

The City Centre - Southsea - the Districts - then the retail offers outside of the policy

Challenges: The smaller retail offers provide a useful community service and are used by many as a top-up to major shopping and the danger to these had been highlighted during discussion of the Tesco application at Milton recently. The government allows changes of use without the need for planning permission which weakens the local government position on retaining retail units. As seen with the Tesco application there were challenges to the smaller shops with big users coming in and there was already a decreased demand due to the rise of internet sales. There is evidence of decline at Fratton. The questions were how to support a vast array of retail offers in the city and how to make attractive environment, such as the encouragement of cafes and coffee shops in the daytime and give consideration to the evening environment in these areas.

During the panel's discussion of the issues that they were aware of the following arose:

- Longstanding empty units (as evidenced by the Co-op and golf shop in Drayton and Farlington) impacted on the environment of the shopping area and footfall would drop significantly (Councillor Bosher reported that they had struggled to get a Christmas tree at Drayton the last year).
- There was a need to encourage people back into the areas through the provision of community facilities such as libraries and mobile libraries which attract customers.
- There was the issue of parking charges and bus services with the right routes to get people to the local centres. With regard to the car park it was noted that Cosham High Street the car parking clamping had caused problems to the top Cosham High Street with regard to the library bus in Drayton and Farlington this was possibly at the wrong location.
- There was a lack of a PCC information points throughout the city; these
 would be useful for buying tickets of big events (e.g. as Festival of the
 Sea) rather than people having to come into the centre of the city.
- The lack of the right bus services affected the retail centres and could isolate communities as seen in Allaway Avenue.

The panel members felt it would be useful to have data regarding empty units in the shopping areas such Drayton and Farlington, Highland Road and see how statistics compared with similar neighbouring local authorities.

Discussion took place about where there was success in filling units such as Milton shops where it was thriving as there was a good range of shops, a post office and a renowned butcher. Whereas in Drayton and Farlington the post office had closed which had been a focal point and had made the more elderly population want to go out to the local shops.

The difference between the thriving Albert Road and the neighbouring Highland Road which had lots of empty units it was noticeable. Members were keen to find out more about the Shopping Festival and Sherlock Trail which would encourage people to go further extending their trips. There was a

need to encourage walking to the local centres also not just driving to superstores.

Markets/events: The panel members would like further discussion with the appropriate officers on the possibility of pop-up themed markets across the city. The farmers' markets were seen as attractive and there was the demand to these in more centres. Members would be interested in exploring the possibility of seasonal events in the retail centres. Councillor Swan reported that Portsmouth Football Club had been asked to have a presence in Allaway Avenue.

Members requested more information on:

- The rates for empty properties
- Access to the retail centres/ transportation links
- parking in the shopping areas and how they were covered by parking zones/tickets for parking
- The costs involved in setting up mini markets.
- The demographics of the local areas of the secondary shopping areas so that events could be tailored to the local needs.

It was also asked if the mobile library bus could be used for events such as a Christmas grotto. It was felt that major events took place in the south of the city whereas there was only one major event in the north being the fireworks display.

Future witnesses - these should include:

- the Albert Road Traders' Association for them to explain how they have been successful and the Cosham Traders' Association to see how these were set up as if they could give support to new TAs in other areas.
- The representative from the **libraries** would also be invited to talk about the possibilities for and the siting of the mobile library and if in Drayton and Farlington the vacant Co-op would be a suitable site.

Scoping Document

The members examined the draft scoping document which they approved, subject to amendment during the course of the review, and taking on board some of the suggestions made regarding witnesses at this meeting.

Discussion took place about what the review could achieve and Councillor Winnington as the previous chair stressed that the recommendations needed to be implemented and reviewed as seen with the COUP update which had been as a result of the work of the previous EDCL Panel review.

The meeting concluded at 7.30 pm.

Councillor Julie Swan

Chair

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Report to: EDCL Scrutiny Panel - 22 October 2014

Report by: Councillor Julie Swan, Chair of EDCL Scrutiny Panel

Title: The Future of UK High Streets: Driving Local Growth and Regeneration

I attended the conference along with Claire Upton-Brown, City Development Manager, on 18 September in London, to bring back ideas to the panel for their consideration. Penny Mordaunt MP was the 1st speaker, as High Streets Minister, who referred to the Cosham Traders Association and how they had helped to rejuvenate Cosham High Street. The contribution of Tony Coombes, owner of a Key Cutting business in Cosham was highlighted.

Delegates were directed to the **Great British High Street** website:

<u>www.thegreatbritishhighstreet.co.uk</u> who are running a campaign called 'Love your local market'. This campaign has helped to rejuvenate many local high streets and provides ides that have worked in the past to help increase footfall.

There is a **Christmas Market Action Day** campaign to be held nationally on December 6th, also accessible from the same link as above. Need further information on this.

Ideas raised to help stimulate market days:

- Free Parking
- Youth Markets (encourage young traders by promoting reduced price young traders licenses)
- Combine youth theatre and dance on youth market days
- Themed Market Days
- Encourage traders by setting stall costs at £10 per table and reduce tale size to 6ft maximum
- Night time Markets to encourage evening economy

Problems that affect shopping areas and reduce footfall:

- Business Rates
- Tatty shop fronts
- No 'main draw'
- Too many hot food takeaways

Can hot food takeaways be restricted, especially close to schools?

Ideas for tackling Tatty Shop Fronts -

- (i) Art projects if businesses sign up to this then we could potentially look at some sort of art project, perhaps in conjunction with the University/Local Artists to 'paint' shutters so that when shops are closed the area looks good (refer to article called "Culture on the High Street").
- (ii) Also check out a scheme called 'nominate your neighbourhood' which ran a Street Art Programme via The Londonist (online paper) the Street Art increased footfall by 75%.

Main Draw -

- (i) Key shops
- (ii) Community attractions can include a Medical/Health Centre

- (iii) Attract shoppers via a 'Makers Emporium' where closed premises are re-opened to allow micro business artisans to have a stall/area within the space where they can sell their own produced wares. These premises would need to be properly run by an experienced Retail/Store Manager who would be there to assist the business owners with how to display and sell goods whilst advising on invoicing and receipts etc. (everything that being a store manager generally entails). These 'artisans' can be encouraged to gain their own shops by reducing rates on empty properties in the area for a period of time after which they have established and grown too big for the Emporium. Thus ensuring a flow of local companies and helping to give people a hand to move from small home units to retail sales.
- (iv) Keep key services such as tax offices and **housing offices** on local high streets to encourage local footfall give people a reason to come to the high street, need to find attractions that match the needs of the local community. Obviously these will differ by area.
- (v) **Pop up shops** Check out a scheme called Pop Up Britain, has its own programme manager. Used local colleges to encourage students studying businesses to come up with business ideas and get them out into the local area. Can easily combine with business projects as long as sufficient business mentoring takes place.

Other issues raised for future exploration by the panel:

Promotions - Shop Local/Use it Lose it campaigns. Also the potential for artisan shops within certain areas to get together to offer an e-business although I would expect that this would really only work in the Palmerston/Albert Road areas so not suitable for this project.

Transport - links to footfall and bus routes.

Loss of retail units - Potential to use landlord licensing schemes to prevent shops being converted if the premises have flats above them.

Personal ideas for further discussion with EDCL Panel:

- Does the Pompey Community Bus ever visit Cosham/Paulsgrove area?
- Moveable exhibitions the City Museum runs exhibitions for differing periods of time which often prove very popular with residents and attracts people from outside the area. The current project concerns WW1 where people can even research their own local family during the war. Is there a possibility that information from these exhibitions (not valuable pieces) could be reduced in size and reduced to fit to fit into an average vacant shop unit? There is a potential to open two additional 'museum' type shops in Paulsgrove and Cosham. Exhibitions could be changed on a regular basis as the Museum changes and updates it's displays if we started with WW1 and gave people the opportunity to research their families, encouraging local schools to visit in smaller groups people would get used to them being there if they are rotated every 3 months it also gives people something different to visit. Are there any PCC owned premises in these areas suitable? Is there an allowance in the CDL/Planning and Regeneration budgets to allow for such a scheme?

• **Software for local traders** to sell their products online for delivery called Open High Street - but this does depend on local traders actually getting together as people would shop the various stores and have one delivery from all combined.

Research shows that for every £10 spent with a local business £8 of that is spent within the local community as opposed to shopping with large stores online.

Councillor Julie Swan, Chair Economic Development, Culture & Leisure Scrutiny Panel This page is intentionally left blank